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A TIF Joint Review Board Meeting of the Village of Freeburg will be held at the
Municipal Center, Executive Board Room, Tuesday, October 23, 2018, at 10:30

a.m.

A. OLD BUSINESS:

1. Approval of October 19, 2017 minutes

B. NEW BUSINESS:

1. Review of FY2018 TIF Report

C. GENERAL CONCERNS

D. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

E. ADJOURN

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETINGS ARE HELD ON THE FIRST AND THIRD MONDAY OF EVERY MONTH

ST
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The meeting of the Joint Review Board for the TIF was opened by Frank Heiligensten at
10:32 a.m. on Thursday, October 19, 2017, in the Municipal Center. Those in attendance were
Frank Heiligenstein representing St. Clair County, Mark Janssen representing Freeburg District
70, Marianne Recker, Ken Bald and Tony Miller - Freeburg Township, Greg Frerking - Freeburg
High School District #77, Emil Kromat representing Freeburg Fire District, Terry Groth
representing Freeburg Area Library, Village Administrator Tony Funderburg and Office
Manager Julie Polson. Southwestern Illinois College and Freeburg Recreation Park District not
present. Guest present: Tom Carpenter from the Freeburg Tribune.

A. OLD BUSINESS:
1. Approval of November 16, 2016 Minutes: Mr. Mark Janssen motioned to approve the November
16, 2016 minutes and Mr. Tony Miller seconded the motion. All voting yea, the motion carried.

B. NEW BUSINESS:

s Review of FY2017 TIF Report: Village Administrator Tony Funderburg advised we
currently have $763,000 before this year’s installment being paid. We have $168,000 due on
November 1st, then the balance will be $595,000. He commented the bonds are not callable until
2019. He projects at being able to pay the bonds off completely in 2021. Mr. Heiligenstein stated
there are parties asking for the high school to call their bonds in. Village Administrator Tony
Funderburg also advised that we saved approximately $500,000 when we refinanced the bonds
in 2014.

With the addition of Dollar Tree, that will increase our tax revenue. Mr. Heiligenstein will
check with the County to see if Dollar Tree has been included.

C. GENERAL CONCERNS: None.
D. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: None.

E. ADJOURN: Tony Miller motioned to adjourn the meeting at 10:38 a.m. and Emil Kromat seconded
the motion. All voting aye, the motion carried.

|8

Julie Polson
Office Manager

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETINGS ARE HELD ON THE FIRST AND THIRD MONDAY OF EVERY MONTH




FY 2018

ANNUAL TAX INCREMENT FINANCE STATE OF ILLINOIS
REPORT COMPTROLLER
SUSANA A, MENDOZA

Name of Municipality:  Village of Freeburg Reporting Fiscal Year: 2018
County: St. Clair County Fiscal Year End: 3/31/2018
Unit Code: 088/070/32
| TIF Administrator Contact Information

First Name: Tony Last Name: Funderburg

Address: 3709 State Route 15 Title: Village Administrator

Telephone: 618-539-5705 City: Freeburg Zip: 62243
E-mail-

required  tfunderburg@freeburg.com

| attest to the best of my knowledge, that this FY 2018 report of the redevelopment project area(s)
in the City/Village of:

is complete and accurate pursuant to Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 et. seq ] and or
Industrial Jobs Recovery Law [65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 et. seq.].

y A [0/2/2 215

Written signature of TIF Administrator / Daté

Section 1 (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (1.5) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (1.5)")
FILL OUT ONE FOR EACH TIF DISTICT
Name of Redevelopment Project Area Date Designated Date Terminated
North State Street 12/6/2004

*All statutory citations refer to one of two sections of the Illinois Municipal Code: The Tax Increment Allocation
Redevelopment Act [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 et. seq.] or the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law [65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 et. seq]



SECTION 2 [Sections 2 through 5 must be completed for each redevelopment project area listed in Section 1.]

FY 2018
Name of Redevelopment Project Area (below):

North State Street

Primary Use of Redevelopment Project Area*: Retail
* Types include: Central Business District, Retail, Other Commercial, Industrial, Residential, and Combination/Mixed.

If "Combination/Mixed" List Component Types:

Under which section of the Illinois Municipal Code was Redevelopment Project Area designated? (check one):
Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act

Industrial Jobs Recovery Law
Please utilize the information below to properly label the Attachments.

1

No Yes

State Sales Tax Boundary? [65

ere there any amendments to the redevelop
ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (1) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (1)]

If yes, please enclose the amendment (labeled Attachment A).

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the municipality that the municipality has complied with all of the requirements of the
Act during the preceding fiscal year. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (3) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (3})]

Please enclose the CEO Certification (labeled Attachment B).

Opinion of legal counsel that municipality is in compliance with the Act. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (4) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (4)]
Please enclose the Legal Counsel Opinion (labeled Attachment C).

Statement setting forth all activities undertaken in furtherance of the objectives of the redevelopment plan, including any project
implemented and a description of the redevelopment activities. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (A and B) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (A

p

and B)] X
If yes, please enclose the Activities Statement (labled Attachment D).

Were any agreements entered into by the municipality with regard to the disposition or redevelopment of any property within the
redevelopment project area or the area within the State Sales Tax Boundary? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (C) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) "

(M (€N

If yes, please enclose the Agreement(s) (labeled Attachment E).

Is there additional information on the use of all funds received under this Division and steps taken by the municipality to achieve the
objectives of the redevelopment plan? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (D) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (D)] X
If yes, please enclose the Additional Information (labeled Attachment F).

Did the municipality's TIF advisors or consultants enter into contracts with entities or persons that have received or are receiving
payments financed by tax increment revenues produced by the same TIF? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (E) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7)
(EN

If yes, please enclose the contract(s) or description of the contract(s) (labeled Attachment G).

Were there any reports or meeting minutes submitted to the municipality by the joint review board? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7} (F)
and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (F)] X
If yes, please enclose the Joint Review Board Report (labeled Attachment H).

Were any obligations issued by the municipality? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (8) (A) and

5/11-74.6-22 (d) (8) (A)]

If yes, please enclose any Official Statement (labeled Attachment I). If Attachment | is answered yes, then the Analysis
must be attached and (labeled Attachment J).

An analysis prepared by a financial advisor or underwriter setting forth the nature and term of obligation and projected debt service
including required reserves and debt coverage. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (8) (B) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (8) (B)] X
If attachment | is yes, then Analysis MUST be attached and (labeled Attachment J).

Has a cumulative of $100,000 of TIF revenue been deposited into the special tax allocation fund? 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (2) and
5/11-74.6-22 (d) (2)

If yes, please enclose Audited financial statements of the special tax allocation fund S
(labeled Attachment K).

Cumulatively, have deposits of incremental taxes revenue equal to or greater than $100,000 been made into the special tax

allocation fund? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (9) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (9)] <

If yes, the audit report shall contain a letter from the independent certified public accountant indicating compliance or
noncompliance with the requirements of subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3 (labeled Attachment L}.

A list of all intergovernmental agreements in effect to which the municipality is a part, and an accounting of any money transferred
or received by the municipality during that fiscal year pursuant to those intergovernmental agreements. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d)
(10)]

If yes, please enclose the list only, not actual agreements (labeled Attachment M).




SECTION 3.1 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d)(5)(a)(b)(d)) and (65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5)(a)(b)(d))
Provide an analysis of the special tax allocation fund.

FY 2018
hS
TIE NAME: North State Street
Special Tax Allocation Fund Balance at Beginning of Reporting Period [$ 433,390 |
Revenue/Cash C-;J:t‘l;lsag;fe
SOURCE of Revenue/Cash Receipts: Reglellr;:‘t;:or Revenue/Cash
i Receipts for life
R rting Y
SPOFTINEL VoS of TIF % of Total
Property Tax Increment $ 230,388 | $§ 2,127,854 44%
State Sales Tax Increment $ 571,362 12%
Local Sales Tax Increment 0%
State Utility Tax Increment 0%
Local Utility Tax Increment 0%
Interest $ 874 | § 36,867 1%
Land/Building Sale Proceeds 0%
Bond Proceeds $ 2,050,000 43%
Transfers from Municipal Sources 0%
Private Sources 0%
Other (identify source ; if multiple other sources, attach
schedule) 0%
All Amount Deposited in Special Tax Allocation Fund [ $ 231,262 |
Cumulative Total Revenues/Cash Receipts [$ 4,786,083 | 100%|
Total Expenditures/Cash Disbursements (Carried forward from $ 198,186
Section 3.2)
Transfers to Municipal Sources
Distribution of Surplus
Total Expenditures/Disbursements [ $ 198,186 |
Net/Income/Cash Receipts Over/(Under) Cash Disbursements [ $ 33,076 |
FUND BALANCE, END OF REPORTING PERIOD* [ § 466,466 |

* |f there is a positive fund balance at the end of the reporting period, you must complete Section 3.3



SECTION 3.2 A- (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5) (c) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5)(c))
FY 2018
TIF NAME: North State Street

ITEMIZED LIST OF ALL EXPENDITURES FROM THE SPECIAL TAX ALLOCATION FUND
{by category of permissible redevelopment project costs )

PAGE 1

Category of Permissible Redevelopment Cost [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 (q) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 (0)] Amounts

Fiscal Year

1. Cost of studies, surveys, development of plans, and specifications. Implementation and administration
of the redevelopment plan, staff and professional service cost.

2. Annual administrative cost,

3. Cost of marketing sites.

4. Property assembly cost and site preparation costs.

5. Costs of renovation, rehabilitation, reconstruction, relocation, repair or remodeling of existing public or
private building, leasehold improvements, and fixtures within a redevelopment project area.

6. Costs of the constructuion of public works or improvements.

Road Repair (First 50 feet) Curb and gutter/ Move stop sign/Adjust manhole

11,361




SECTION 3.2 A

PAGE 2
7. Costs of eliminating or removing contaminants and other impediments.
8. Cost of job training and retraining projects.
9. Financing costs. i
Principle 150,000
Interest 36,825

10. Capital costs.

11. Cost of reimbursing school districts for their increased costs caused by TIF assisted housing projects.

12. Cost of reimbursing library districts for their increased costs caused by TIF assisted housing projects.




SECTION32 A
PAGE 3

13. Relocation costs.

14, Payments in lieu of taxes.

15. Costs of job training, retraining, advanced vocational or career education.

16. Interest cost incurred by redeveloper or other nongovernmental persons in connection with a
redevelopment project.

17. Cost of day care services.

18. Other.

ITOTAL ITEMIZED EXPENDITURES




FY 2018
TIF NAME:

Section 3.2B

North State Street

Optional: Information in the following sections is not required by law, but would be helpful in creating fiscal

transparency.

List all vendors, including other municipal funds, that were paid in excess of $10,000 during the current reporting year.

Name

Service

Amount

Fournie Contracting

Road repair

11,361.40




SECTION 3.3 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5d) 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5d)
Breakdown of the Balance in the Special Tax Allocation Fund At the End of the Reporting Period by source

FY 2018
TIF NAME:
FUND BALANCE BY SOURCE

North State Street

| $

466,466 |

Amount of Original
Issuance Amount Designated

1. Description of Debt Obligations
TIF Bonds Series2014 $ 1,950,000 | $ 1,330,000
TIF Bonds Series 2014 Interest $ 178,799
Total Amount Designated for Obligations $ 1,950,000 | $ 1,508,799
2. Description of Project Costs to be Paid
Total Amount Designated for Project Costs B - |
TOTAL AMOUNT DESIGNATED [ $ 1,508,799 |
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) | $ (1,042,333)|




SECTION 4 [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (6) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (6)]
FY 2018

TIF NAME: North State Street
Provide a description of all property purchased by the municipality during the reporting fiscal year within the

redevelopment project area.

Check here if no property was acquired by the Municipality within the
Redevelopment Project Area.

Property Acquired by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area.

Property (1):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (2):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (3):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (4):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:




SECTION 5 - 20 ILCS 620/4.7 (7)(F)

FY 2018

TIF Name:

PAGE 1

North State Street

Page 1 is to be included with TIF report. Pages 2 and 3 are to be included ONLY if projects are listed.
Select ONE of the following by indicating an "X':

1. NO projects were undertaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area.

2. The Municipality DID undertake projects within the Redevelopment Project Area. (If selecting this option,

complete 2a.)

2a. The number of projects undertaken by the municipality within the Redevelopment Project Area:

LIST the projects undertaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area:

Estimated Investment
for Subsequent Fiscal

Total Estimated to

TOTAL: 11/1/99 to Date Year Complete Project

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions) 6,000,000 | § -1$ 6,000,000
Public Investment Undertaken 2,205,269 | $ 150,000 | $ 3,018,517
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 2 31/43 181/82

Project 1*:

*PROJECT NAME TO BE LISTED AFTER PROJECT NUMBER

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

5,000,000

5,000,000

Public Investment Undertaken

2,205,269

$ 150,000

3,018,517

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

2 415

121/32

Project 2*;

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

1,000,000

1,000,000

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 3*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 4*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 5*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 6*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment




PAGE2 **ATTACH ONLY IF PROJECTS ARE LISTED**

Project 7*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 8*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 9*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 10*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 11*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 12*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 13*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 14*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 15*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment




PAGE 3 **ATTACH ONLY IF PROJECTS ARE LISTED**

Project 16*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0

Project 17*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0

Project 18*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0

Project 19*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0

Project 20*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0

Project 21*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0

Project 22*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0

Project 23*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0

Project 24*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0

Project 25*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0




Optional: Information in the following sections is not required by law, but would be helpful in evaluating the
performance of TIF in lllinois. *even though optional MUST be included as part of the complete TIF report

SECTION 6
FY 2018

TIF NAME: North State Street

Provide the base EAV (at the time of designation) and the EAV for the year reported for the redevelopment project area
Year redevelopment
project area was Reporting Fiscal Year
designated Base EAV EAV

[ ] I |

List all overlapping tax districts in the redevelopment project area.
If overlapping taxing district received a surplus, list the surplus.

Check if the overlapping taxing districts did not receive a surplus.

Surplus Distributed from redevelopment
Overlapping Taxing District project area to overlapping districts
3 -
[ -
3 =
% -
[3 -
% -
$ -
$ z
$ _
[ -
[3 =
[ -
[3 =
SECTION 7
Provide information about job creation and retention:
Description and Type
Number of Jobs Number of Jobs (Temporary or
Retained Created Permanent) of Jobs Total Salaries Paid
$ z
[ .
[3 -
$ -
[3 -
$ -
$ .
SECTION 8

Provide a general description of the redevelopment project area using only major boundaries:

Optional Documents Enclosed
Legal description of redevelopment project area

Map of District




VILLAGE PRESIDENT
Seth Speiser

VILLAGE CLERK
Jerry Menard

VILLAGE TRUSTEES
Ray Matchett, Ir.
Mike Blaies

Denise Albers

Dean Pruett

Michael Heap

Lisa Meehling

VILLAGE TREASURER
Bryan A. Vogel

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG

FREEBURG MUNICIPAL CENTER
14 SOUTHGATE CENTER, FREEBURG, IL 62243

PHONE: (618) 539-5545

°

FAX: (618) 539-5590

Web Site: www.freeburg.com

September 20, 2018

IL Office of the Comptroller
Local Government Division
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To Whom it May Concern:

North State Street Redevelopment
Unit Code: 088/070/32

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR
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Attachment B

Project Area

This will certify that, to the best of my knowledge, and based on my inquiry of

those directly responsible for reviewing the available records, that the Village of
Freeburg complied with the requirements of 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3, “Tax Increment
Allocation Redevelopment Act” during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018.

contact me at 618/539-5705.

Sincerely,

Village of Freeburg

G s o IR

Seth Speiser
Village President
@-22 -/8

SES/ip

CC:

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to




%. ‘x /K Attachment C

WEILM%{ENSTER
KECK ¢c.

September 24, 2018

Mr. Tony Funderburg
Village Administrator
Village of Freeburg
Freeburg Municipal Center
14 Southgate Center
Freeburg, IL 62243

Re:  Tax Increment Financing District
Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2017

Dear Tony,

Pursuant to your request, [ have reviewed various materials provided by the Village of
Freeburg with respect to the Tax Increment Financing District. Based upon my review of the
materials provided, it is my opinion that the Village of Freeburg, Illinois, is in compliance with

65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5(d)(4) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22(d)(4) of the Tllinois Municipal Code.

If you have any questions or wish to discuss this matter further, please do not hesitate to
call me.

Sincerely,

WEILMUENSTE,

By:
Fre)&erick W. Keck
FWK/sb
J. MICHAEL WEILMUENSTER FREDERICK W. KECK NATHANIEL O. BROWN
jmw@weilmuensterlaw.com fwk@weilmuensterlaw.com nob@weilmuensterlaw.com
Licensed in lllinois and Missouri Licensed in Illinois and Missouri Licensed in Illinois

3201 WEST MAIN | BELLEVILLE, IL 62226 | WEILMUENSTERLAW.COM | P 618-257-2222 | F 618-257-2030



Attachment H

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG I

VILLAGE CLERK FrREEBURG MunicIPAL CENTER PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR
Jerry Menard John Tolan

14 SOUTHGATE CENTER, FREEBURG, IL 62243
VILLAGE TRUSTEES PHONE: (618) 539-5545 =  FAX: (618) 539-5590 POLICE CHIEF
Ray Matchett, Jr. T —— Michael J. Schutzenhofer
Mike Blaies 2 freeburg.com

ESDA COORDINATOR

Denise Albers

——— T Eugene Kramer

Michae] Hgap ) ) . ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
Lisa Meehling Joint Review Board Meeting Matt Trout

VILLAGE TREASURER Thursday, OCtObE‘l’ 19, 2017 at 10:30 a.m. VILLAGE ATTORNEY
Bryan A. Vogel Weilmuenster & Keck, P.C.

The meeting of the Joint Review Board for the TIF was opened by Frank Heiligensten at
10:32 a.m. on Thursday, October 19, 2017, in the Municipal Center. Those in attendance were
Frank Heiligenstein representing St. Clair County, Mark Janssen representing Freeburg District
70, Marianne Recker, Ken Bald and Tony Miller - Freeburg Township, Greg Frerking - Freeburg
High School District #77, Emil Kromat representing Freeburg Fire District, Terry Groth
representing Freeburg Area Library, Village Administrator Tony Funderburg and Office
Manager Julie Polson. Southwestern Illinois College and Freeburg Recreation Park District not
present. Guest present: Tom Carpenter from the Freeburg Tribune.

A. OLD BUSINESS:
1. Approval of November 16, 2016 Minutes: Mr. Mark Janssen motioned to approve the November
16, 2016 minutes and Mr. Tony Miller seconded the motion. All voting yea, the motion carried.

B. NEW BUSINESS:

i Review of FY2017 TIF Report: Village Administrator Tony Funderburg advised we
currently have $763,000 before this year's installment being paid. We have $168,000 due on
November 1st, then the balance will be $595,000. He commented the bonds are not callable until
2019. He projects at being able to pay the bonds off completely in 2021. Mr. Heiligenstein stated
there are parties asking for the high school to call their bonds in. Village Administrator Tony
Funderburg also advised that we saved approximately $500,000 when we refinanced the bonds
in 2014.

With the addition of Dollar Tree, that will increase our tax revenue. Mr. Heiligenstein will
check with the County to see if Dollar Tree has been included.

C. GENERAL CONCERNS: None.
D. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: None.

E. ADJOURN: Tony Miller motioned to adjourn the meeting at 10:38 a.m. and Emil Kromat seconded
the motion. All voting aye, the motion carried.

Julie Polson
Office Manager

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETINGS ARE HELD ON THE FIRST AND THIRD MONDAY OF EVERY MONTH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Board
of Trustees of the Village of
Freeburg, llinois:

We have audited the accompanymg financial statements of the govemmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Village of Freeburg, Illinois as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the governmental
funds financial statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting as
described in Note 1; this includes determining that the modified cash basis of accounting
is an acceptable basis for the presentation of the governmental fund financial statements in
the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the business-type and proprietary fund financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Management is
also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence. about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intérnal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedmes that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opimon on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 1o such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
sighificant accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities (modified cash
basis), the business-type activities (accrual basis), each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois, as of March 31, 2018, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
(Governmental activities - modified cash basis, Business-type activities — acetual basis)
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in
Note 1.

Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note: 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. The financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting,
which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, except for the Village's Proprietary Funds, which have been
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that
matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information/Other Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 to 12, the budgetary comparison
information on page 41, and the schedules of pension funding information on pages 42-43
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Ametica,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,



Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Village of Freeburg, Illinois® basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordarice with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Certified Public Accountants
Alton, Illinois

September 17, 2018



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois® (Village) annual audit presents a
management’s discussion and analysis of the Village’s financial activity during the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2018. The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is
designed to focus on current activities, resulting changes and currently known facts and
should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements and footnotes.
Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this information rests with the Village.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the
Village’s basic financial statements. There are three components to the basic financial
statements:

1. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements

This report also contains required supplementary information/other information in addition
to the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the Village’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The
government-wide financial statements exclude any fiduciary fund activities.

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues {governmenial activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through uset fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the
Village include general government, pubhc safety, highways and streets, sanitation and
development The business-type activities include water, sewer, electric light and power,
and swimming pool.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Villages assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the Village is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Village’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. Changes in net position are reported on the
modified cash basis of accounting for the governmental activities and the accrual basis of
accounting for the business-type activities.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village can be divided into two
categories: governmental and proprietary.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essential functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Because
the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
Village’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund statement of assets,
liabilities and fund balances arising from modified cash basis transactions and the
governmental fund statement of revenues and expenditures arising from modified cash
basis transactions provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between the
governmental funds and the government-wide governmental activities,

The Village maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental funds statement of assets, liabilities and fund balances
arising from modified cash basis transactions and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues and expenditures arising from modified cash basis transactions for the major
fund: General Fund. Data for the other nonmajor governmental funds are combined in the
supplementary information and reported in total in a separate column.

The Village adopts an annual budget for all governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
schedule for the General Fund has been provided to demonstrate legal compliance with the
adopted budget.

Proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions and the same
type of information presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The Village uses an enterprise fund to account for its water, sewer, electric
light and power, and swimming pool operations.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.

Required supplementary information/Other Information. The Village reports
budgetary comparison and retirement funding progress related to IMRF as required
supplementary information/other information following the notes to the financial
statements.

Other supplementary information. The combining fund statements, referred to earlier in
connection with non-major governmental funds, are presented immediately followirig the
required supplementary information.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Basis of accounting. The Village presents its financial statements for the governmental
funds on the modified cash basis of accounting. The modified cash basis of accounting is
a basis of accounting other than generally accepted accounting principles. Basis of
accounting is a reference to when financial events are recorded, such as the timing for
recognizing revenues, expenses, and their related assets and liabilities. Under the Village’s
modified cash basis of accounting, revenues ard expenses and related assets and liabilities
are recorded when they result from cash transactions, except for the recording of
depreciation expense related to capital assets in the government-wide financial statements
for all activities.

As a result of the use of this modified cash basis of accounting, certain assets and their
related revenues (such as accounts receivable and revenue for unbilled or provided services
not yet collected) and certain liabilities and their related expenses (such as accounts payable
and expenses for good or services received but not yet paid, and accrued expenses and
liabilities) are not tecorded in the financial statements for the governmental funds.
Therefore, when reviewing the financial information and discussion within this annual
report, the reader should keep in mind the limitations resulting from the use of the modified
cash basis of accounting.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Village has presented its financial statements under the reporting model pursuant to
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial
Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the Village, assets exceeded liabilities by $10,437,284 at
the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the Village’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment and infrastructure), less any related debt used
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Village uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequentially, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the Village’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The condensed statement of net position is as follows:

Govermmental Activities Business-type Activitics Tofal
March 31, Mareh 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018 2017 201_3 2017 2018 2017
Currentand other assets $ 1,776390 8 1575905 § 4280537 § 4363906 § 6056927 § 5939811
Capital assets 1,171,151 1,187,052 10,635,187 11,198,103 11,806,338 12,385,155
Total assels 2,947,541 2,762,957 14,915,724 15,562,009 17,863,265 18,324,966
Long-term liabilities
outstanding 1,411,019 1,547,000 5,153,238 5,463,198 6,564,257 7,010,198
Other liabilitics 6,079 8,131 855,645 915,492 861,724 923,623
Total Tiabilities 1.417,098 1,555,131 6,008,883 6,378,650 7,425,981 7,933,821
Net position:
Net invested in capital
assels 1,138,166 1,120,052 5,137,658 5,761,956 6,275,824 6,882,008
Restricted 876,528 820,203 s 2 876,528 820,203
Unrestricted (484,251) (732,429 3,769,183 3,421,363 3,284,932 2,688,934
Total net position $ 1,530,443 $ 1,207,826 §  8.906,841 $ 9183319 $ 10,437,284 $ mz39l;145

Total net position increased $46,139 resulting in a balance of $10,437,284 as of March 31,
2018. Current assets, which include cash, investments and accounts receivable, increased
$117,116. Non-current assets decreased $578,817, due to current year depreciation being
in excess of asset additions. Total liabilities decreased $507,840 resulting in a balance of
$7,425,981 as of March 31, 2018. Outstanding debt, including long-term and short-term
portions, decreased $445,941 due to regular debt retirements and the lower net pension

obligation related to IMRF.

The change in net position is further examined in the Analysis of Net Position section of

the MD&A.

ANALYSIS OF NET POSITION

Analvysis of Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

‘Total net position

2018 2017
Percent Amount Percent Amount
60.1% $ 6,275,824 66.2% $ 6,882,008
8.4% 876,528 7.9% 820,203
31.5% 3,284,932 25.9% 2,68_8,9_34
100.0% $ 10,437,284 1_00.0.% $ 10,391, 1_45

Total net position balances increased by $46,139 in fiscal year 2018 to a total ending
balance of $10,437,284. Capital net position balances decreased by $606,184 in the current
year due to depreciation exceeding capital additions. The unrestricted net position balances
changed by the net income of the related operating activities.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The revenue and expenditure comparisons that comprise the current year increase follow.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Reveénues/Receipts 2018 2017

Property tax $ 741,280 $ 708,857
Sales and use tax 525,926 504,150
State income tax 424,228 461,593
Replacement tax 5,463 5,881
Video gaming tax 40,298 3,552
Charges for services 335,704 338,699
Telecommunications tax 02,640 105,005
Motor fuel tax 110,259 110,979
Utility tax 254,645 245,637
TInvestment income 12,158 11,530
Operating grants 19,952 10,938
Capital grants - 18,498
Gain on disposal of assets 45,986 1,009
Miscellaneous 18,350 40,125
Total revenues $2,626,889 $2,566,453

Total revenues for the governmental activities increased $60,436 for the year ended March
31, 2018. The increase is mainly due to having higher gaming taxes for the first full year
as well as an increase in property taxes and the proceeds from the sale of property.

2018 2017

Expenditures by category  Percent Amount Percent Amount
General government 112%  § 249,057 11.9% $ 261,436
‘Public safety 52.6% 1,173,866 53.6% 1,180,917
Highways and streets 23.3% 520,374 22.6% 497,784
Development 0.5% 11,361 0.0% E
Sanitation 10.6% 236,890 10.3% 226,593
Interest on long-term debt 1% 38,693 1.7% 38,024
Total expenditures - 100.0%  $2,230,241 100.0% $2,204,754

The Village reported an increase in expenses for governmental activities of $25,487. The
MFT fund had significantly higher expenditures in the current year. Public safety reported
the highest expenditure category with 53% of all governmental expenditures.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The above expenditure categories include amounts for depreciation expense on assets
purchased in the current and prior years. The breakdown by category is as follows:

2018 2017
General government $ 31,169 $ 31,387
Public safety 52,376 45,164
Highways and streets 35,574 30,711
Sanitation 10,080 10,080

Total depreciation  $129,199  §117,342

Total capital outlay expenditures in the governmental fund financial statements for the
current year totaled $113,298.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Total revenues for the business-type activities increased $397,671 for the year ended March
31, 2018. The Village had general increases in all charges for services in the current year.

Revenues 2018 2017
Water charges § 918,130 $ 868,823
Sewer charges 704,472 539,624
Electric charges 5,166,996 5,001,844
Swimming pool charges 83,755 77,734
Property taxes 55,704 56,687
Loss on disposal of assets - (14,827)
Investment income 66,448 67,949
Total revenues $6,995,505 $6,597,834

2018 2017
Operating Exp enditures Percent Amount Percent Amount:
Personal services 209%  $1,510,498 19.1%  $1,305,019
Contractual services 9.5% 686,402 9.9% 672,443
Electricity and water purchase  50.7% 3,661,002 51.4% 3,502,885
Supplies and materials 3.5% 256,104 3.7% 250,687
Heat, light and power 0.5% 35,006 0.5% 31,702
Depreciation 14.9% 1,073,269 15.5% 1,057,870
Total expenditures 100.0%  $7,222,281 100.0%  $6,820,606

Expenses in the businessnty'pe' activities increased in total by $401,675. As in the prior year,
the largest categories of operating expense were for electricity and water purchases which
increased $158,117 in the current year. Personal services also increased due to the large
increase in the current year for the IMRF liability that was considerably lower in the prior
year.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUNDS FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, the Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Village’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the Village’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the 2018, the Village’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $1,674,866, an increase of $202,252 in comparison with the prior year. A
large portion of this balance constitutes unreserved, undesignated fund balance, which is
available for spending at the Village’s discretion. However, $781,083 (TIF Fund and
Special Revenue Funds) has been restricted for future debt payments and other restricted
expenditures.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $893,783. This balance
increased $146,212 in the current year,

The TIF Fund increased $33,076 in the current year for a fund balance of $466;-7466. The
Motor Fuel Tax Fund reported an increase of $22,634 for an ending balance of $285,909.
The Impact Fees Fund reported an increase of $330 in the current year for a fund balance
of $28,708.

Proprietary fund. The Village’s proprietary funds provide the same information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Waterworks, Sewer, Electric Light and Power, and
Swimming Pool funds at the end of the year amounted to $3,769,183, an increase of
$347,820 in comparison with prior year. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund
have already been addressed in the discussion of the Village’s government-wide financial
statements.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

A comparison of budget and actual expenditures for the General Fund is as follows:

Budget Actual
General Fund $2,241,432 $2,075,172

The budget was passed on March 20, 2017.

10



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

Governmental Activitics Business-type Activities Total
March 31, March 31, March 31, Maich 31, © Mireh 31, March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Land 3 83,840 $ 83,840 § 426700 § 426,700 & 510540 8 510,540
Buildings and

Ilnprovemclils 657,805 657,805 7410077 7,365,738 8,067,982 8,023,543
Switiming Pool - - 1,099,984 1,099,984 1,099,984 1,099,984
Infrastructure 599,022 593,847 = - 599,022 593,847
Distribution and

Collection Systems - - 15,334,713 15,090,199 15,334,713 15,090,199
Vehicles and

Equipment 927,758 870,201 2,655/786 2,474,523 3,583,544 3,344,724

$ 2268425 $_ 2205693 § 26927360 § 26457044 § 29195785 § 28662837

The Village’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and bus’iﬁess-.type activities
as of March 31, 2018 amounts to $11,806,338, net of accumulated depreciation, This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, equipment,
vehicles and infrasttucture. The total outlay for capital assets for the current year was
$623,651. The largest additions in the current year were for the North State Street sewer
extension, electrical line additions, three vehicles, and a compact excavator. These
additions were offset by current year depreciation expense of $1,202,468, thereby resulting
in a net decrease in net capital assets for the current year. Additional information related to
capital assets can be found in Note 4 of the financial statements.

Long-term Debt

At the end of 2018, the Village had total long-term debt obligations for governmental
activities and business-type activities in the amount of $1,411,019 and $5,063,242,
respectively, compared to $1,547,000 and $5,001,860 at the end of 2017.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Loans Payable $ - 8 - 0§ 1620169 § 1208883 162,069 § 1208883
‘Notes Payable 70,119 67,000 160,373 162,977 230,492 229,977
Capital Leases 10,900 - 16,700 = 2’:‘,(_'}0(_) -
Bonds Payable 1,330,000 1,480,000 '3_,2(_1_5,000 3,630,000 4,595,000 5,110,000
“Total Debt $ 1411019 0§ 1547000 $ 5063242 % 5001860 $ 6474261 §  6548.860

The governmental activities reported decreases in long-term debt of $135,981. The
business-type activities reported an increase in long-term debt of $61,382. Overall, the
decrease in debt was $74,599. Additional information related to long-term debt can be
found in Note 6 of the financial statements.

11



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of Freeburg’s
finances for all those with an interest in the Village’s finances. Questions concerning any
of the information provided in this teport or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the Village Clerk’s Office, 14 Southgate Center, Freeburg, IL
62243,

12



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
(BUSINESS -TYPE ACTIVITIES - ACCRUAL BASIS)
(GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - MODIFIED CASH BASIS)

MARCH 31, 2018
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,589,036 $ 1,440,691 $ 3,029,727
Investments 187,354 2,154,579 2,341,933
Receivables (Net of allowance
for uncollectible): - 624,070 624,070
Escrow - 12,000 12,000
Prepaid Expenses - 49,197 49,197
Capital Assets:
Land 83,_840 _ 426,700 510,540
Buildings and Improvements 657,805 7,410,177 8,067,982
Swimming Pool 2 1,099,984 1,099,984
Infrastructure 599,022 - 599,022
Distribution and Collection Systems - 15,334,713 15,334,713
Vehicles-and Equ_ipment 024,758 2,655,786 3,5_80,5‘44'
Less: Accurmulated Depréciation (1,094,274) (16,292,173) (17,386,447)
‘Net Capital Assets 1,171,151 10,635,187 11,806,338
Total Assets $ 2947541 § 14915724 § 17,863,265
Liabilities
Accounts Payable: $ 6,079  § 287,356  $ 293,435
Accrued Salaries - 34,403 34,403
Accrued Interest - 28,873 28,873
Customer Deposits - 155,889 155,889
‘Noncutrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 184,488 518,784 703,272
Due In More Than One Year _ 1,226,531 4,634,454 5,860,985
Total Liabilities 1,417,098 5,659,759 7,076,857
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Future Pension Expense $ - $ 349,124 $ 349,124
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,138,166 5,137,658 6,275,824
Restricted 8_76,523 - 876,528
Unresiricted (484,251) 3,769,183 3,284,932
Total Net Position $. 1,530443 § 8,906,841 § 10437284

The notes to the financial statemnents are an integral part of this statement
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS TRANSACTIONS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
MARCH 31, 2018
Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 858,825 $ 634,766 % 1,493,591
Investments 41,037 146,317 187,354
Total Assets $ 899,862 $ 781,083 $ 1,680,945
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 6,079 $ - $ 6,079
‘Total Liabilities 6,079 - 6,079
Fund Balance:
Restricted - 781,083 781,083
Unassigned 893,783 - 893,783
Total Fund Balarice 893,783 781,083 1,674,866
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance $ 899862 $ 781,083 $ 1,680,945

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF ASSETS,
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ARISING FROM MODIFIED
CASH BASIS TRANSACTIONS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental fund balances are different because:
Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,674,866
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported on the balance sheet of the

governmental funds. 1,171,151

Long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) is not reported as a liability on the
balance sheet of the governmental funds. (1,411,019)

Internal service funds are included in the statement of net position in the
government wide financial statements as these funds benefit the general
government as a whole. 95,445

Net position of governmental activities $ 1,530,443

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS TRANSACTIONS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
Revenues:
Property Tax $ 510,892 $ 230,388 $ 741,280
Utility Tax 254,645 ; 254,645
Intergovernmental:
Replacement Tax 5,463 e 5,463
Sales Tax 413,303 - 413,303
State Income Tax 424,228 - 424,228
Local Use Tax 112,623 - 112,623
Telecommunications Tax 92,640 - 92,640
Motor Fuel Tax - 110,259 110,259
Video Gaming Tax 40,298 s 40,208
Franchise Fees 25,030 - 25,030
Licenses and Permits 44,336 - 44,336
Fines and Penalties 12,120 - 12,120
Garbage Collection 254,218 2 254,218
Investment Earnings 6,331 5,542 11,873
Miscellaneous 38,302 - _ 38,302
Total Revenues 2,234,429 346,189 2,580,618
Expenditures:
Current:
Geéneral Government 217,888 - 217,888
Public Safety:
Palice 1,115,990 z 1,115,990
Civil Defénse 5,500 - 5,500
Highways and Streets 392,837 91,963 484,800
Development - 11,361 11,361
Sanitation 226,810 - 226,810
Debt Service:
Principal 18,966 150,000 168,966
Interest and Charges 1,868 36,825 38,693
Capital Outlay 113,298 ~ 113,298
Total Expenditures 2,093,157 290,149 2,383,306
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 141,272 _ 56,040 197,312
Other Financing Sources (Uses);
Praceeds from Fixed Asset Sales 45,986 - 45,986
Proceeds from Lozn 32,985 - 32,985
Operating Transfers (74,031) - (74,031)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 4,940 = 4,940
Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures 146,212 56,040 202,252
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 747,571 725,043 1,472,614
Fund Balance, End of Year § 893,783 $ 781,083 $ 1,674,866

The notes to the-financial statements are an integral part of this statement



VILL-ACE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND
EXPENDITURES ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS
TRANSACTIONS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 202,252

Goverimental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which depreciation expense ($129,199) exceeded
capital outlay ($113,298) in the current year. (15,901)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources
of governmental funds. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of those
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 135,981

Activity related to the internal service funds are included in the
statement of net position in the government wide financial statements

as these funds benefit the general government as a whole. 285
Change in niet position of governmental activities $ 322,617

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



Assels
Currént Assets:
Cash arid Cash Equivalents
Investinents
Receivables:
Customers
Unbilled Revenue
Other
Escrow
Prepaid Insurance
Total Current Assets

Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings-and Improvements
Swimming Pool

Distribution and Collection Systems

Vehicles and Equipment

Less - Accumulated Depreciation

Net Capital Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Currerit Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries
Accrued Interest

Current Portion of Long Term Debt

Customer Deposiis
Total Curtént Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Net Pension Liability

Long Term Debt (Nét__ of Current)
Total Noneurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
MARCH 31, 2018

Future Pension Expense

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Committed
Unreserved

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Net Position

Major Funds Goverimental

Electric: Activities -

Light and Swimming Internal
Power Waterworks Sewer Pool Total Service Fund
$§ 7199674 $ 366451 § 273,890 § 676 & L4069 § 95445
1,698,712 320,203 135,664 = 2,154,579 =
251351 43,767 39,103 - 334221 "
210,301 37.465 32.149 . 279,915 B
9,934 - 5 . 9,934 .
- % 12,000 - 12,000 -
41,615 3,598 3.984 . 49,197 .
3,011,587 771,484 496790 676 4,280,537 95,445
211,375 50,094 158,981 6,250 426,700 g
6,225,144 5 989,001 196,032 7410177 .
i i i 1,099,984 1,099,984 8
8,097,187 4,063,567 3,173,959 2 15,334,713 .
1,403,706 676,073 454,991 121016 2,655,786 .
15,937,412 4,789,734 4,776,932 1,423,282 26,927,360 -
10,277,412 3,621,825 1,846,153 546,783 16,292,173 :
5,660,000 1,167,909 2,930,779 876,499 10,635,187 ;
§ 8,671,587 § 1,939.393  $ 3427569 § 877175 8§ 14915724 % 95445
$§ 250974 0§ 31658 0§ 4249  § 475  $ 287356 § -
19,767 8,337 6,299 2 34,403 -
22,971 E . 5,902 28,873 -
363,129 28,536 92,119 35,000 518,784 -
89,448 38,775 27,666 - 153,889 5
746,289 107,306 130,333 41,377, 1,025,305 .
50,234 22,538 17,224 " 89,996 s
2.624,688 25,171 1,549,599 345,000 4,544,458 -
2,674,922 47,709 1,566,823 345,000 4,634,454 -
3,421,211 155,015 1,697,156 386,377 5,659,759 -

§ 194875 $§ 87431 % 66818 § - % 349124

2,672,183 1,114,202 854,774 496,499 5,137,658 =
- - - - - 95,445
2,383,318 582,745 808,821 {5,701) 3,769,183 J
5,055,501 1,696,947 1,663,595 490,798 8,906,841 95,445
$ 8,671,587 0§ 1,939,303  § 3427569 $ 877175  § 14915724 § 95445

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Major Funds _ - Governmental
Electric Activities -
Light and Swimming Tinternal
Power Waterworks Sewer Pool "Fotal Service Fund
Operating Revenue:
Charges for Services $5094842 § B74226 $ 704472 $ 63281 $6,736871 $ 5
Conneetion Fees 12,030 8,540 8.250 - 28,820 -
Supplies Sold 8.355 19,558 - 20,474 48,387 -
Miscellaneous 51,769 15,806 189 - 67,764 -
Total Operating Revenue 5,166,996 918,130 712,911 83,755, 6,881,792 -
Operating Expenses:

Personal Services: 778,907 372,939 300,245 58.407 1,510,498 -
Contractual Services and Other 496,466 83,422 102,016 4,498 686,402 -
Electricity gnd Water Purchased 3,260,711 400,291 - - 3.661,002 -
Supplies and Materials 'i'21,364 58,705 49.666 26,369 256,104 -
Heat, Light and Power 10,741 5,324 18.941 R 35,006 -
Depreciaﬂon 653,418 224,122 122,117 73,012 1,073,269 B
Total Operating Expenses 5,321,607 1,145,403 592,985 162,286 7.222,281 -
Operating Income (Loss) (154.611) (227,273) 119.926 (78,331} (340,489) -

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Property Taxes - - - 55,704 55,704 -
Interest Income: 41,666 19,751 5.025 6 66,448 285
Interest Expense (76,762) (346) (35,961) (19,103) {132,172) =

Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses) (35.096) 19,405 (30,936) 36,607 (10,020) 285
Operating Transfers - - - 74,031 74,031 .
Change in Net Position (189,707) (207.868) 88.990 32,107 (276,478) 285
Net Position, Beginning of Year 5,245,208 1,904,815 1,574,605 458,691 9,183,319 95,160
Net Position, End of Year 55,055,501 $1,606947 % 1663595 § -49{),798_ 3 8,906,841 3 05,445,

The notes to the finantial statements are an integral part of this statement



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Maijor Funds Governmental
Electric Activities -
Light and Swimming Internal
Power Waterworks Sewer _ Paol Total Service Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers $ 5,109,787 $ 918456 $ 712,398 3 83,755 $ 6,824,396 $ -
Cash Paid to Suppliers (4,065,568) (629,629) (680,422) (37.627) {5,413,246) -
Cash Payments to Employees for Services {513,520) (240.572) (194,233) (51,745) (1,000.070) =
Net Cash Provided (Used) By '
Operating Activities 530,699 48.255 (162,257) (5.617) 411,080 3
Cash Flows from Capital Financing -Activities
Piirchase of Fixed Assets (44,478) (98,185) (310,242) (57,450) (510,35%) -
Proceeds from Debt “ 48,721 536,208 - 584,029 =
Principal Paid o Debt (362,446} (8,790) {89,593) (62.714) (323,545) <
Contributed Capital - - - 15,545 - =
Interest Paid on. Debt (78,298) : (346) (35,961 {1 9,49_‘)) (134,104) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Capital Financing Activities (485.,222) (58,600) 100,410 (124,118) (583,075) s
Cash Flows from Investing Activities ‘ .
Purchase of Investment (6.712) {6,070) (1,008) - {16,790) i
Interest Income 41,666 19,751 5,025 6 06,448 285
Net Cash Provided By
Investing Activities 31,954 13,681 4,017 6 49,658 285
Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Payments From (To) Other Funds (540) - - 74,_03 i 73,491 -
Property Tax - - - 55,704 55,704 i
Customer Deposits (1,075) (34) (63) - (1,172) 5
Net Cash Provided By
Non-Capital Financing Activities (1,615) (34) (63) 129,735 128.023 -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents 75,816 3.302 (57,893) 6 5,686 285
Cash @nd Cash Equivalents,
Begil}'nii;g of Year 723,858 363,149 331,783 670 1,419,460 95,160
Cash and Cash Equivalents; End of Year $ 799,674 § 366,451 $ 273890 % 676§ 1,425,146 § 95445

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating
Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities;

Deépreciation

Decrease (Increase) in:
Aecounts Receivable
Other Receivables
Unbilled Revenue
Prepaid Insurance
Future Penision Expense

Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable
Net Pension Liability
Accrued Salaries

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

VILEAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Major Funds Governmernital
Electric Activities -
Light and Swimming Internal
Power Waterworks Sewer Pool Total Service Fund
§ (154,611) & (227,273) § 119926 § (78,531) § (340489 % -
653,418 224,722 122,117 73.012 1,073.269 -
(46,757) (1.415) (1,725) . (49,897) :
(8,519) - - 4 (8,519) )
(1,933) 1,741 1,212 - 1,020 -
(1,851) 35 (295) - 2,111 -
293,351 124,118 97,547 - 315,016 -
19,779 5,226 (432,096) (98) (407,189) -
(223,622) (79,487) (68,233) - (371,342) s
1.444 588 {710) - 1,322 .
$§ 530,699 § 48,255 § (162251  § (3.617y § 411,080 $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this sfatement



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois have been prepared in
conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting for the Governmental Fund Types
and the accrual basis of accounting for the Proprietary Fund Types as apphcd to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant of the government’s accounting policies are
described below.

(@)

(b)

Financial reporting entity

The Village’s combined financial statements include the accounts of all Village
operations. The criteria for including organizations as component units within the
Village’s reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of GASB’s Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, include whether:

the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name)
the Village holds the corporate powers of the organization

the Village appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

the Village is able to impose its will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the
Village

e there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the Village

The Village has determined that no other outside agency meets the above criteria
and therefore, no other agency has been included as a component unit in the
Village’s financial statements. In addition, the Village is not aware of any entity that
would exercise such oversight, which would result in the Village being considered
a component unit of the entity.

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
government. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of
a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
1) charges to customers or apphcants who purchase use or directly benefit from
goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants
and confributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items, properly
not included among program revenues, are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses ate recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified cash basis of accounting.
Accordingly, receipts are recorded when cash is received and disbursements are

recorded when checks are written. Only assets representing a right to receive cash

arising from a previous payment of cash are recorded as assets of a fund. In the same
manner, only liabilities resulting from previous cash transactions are recorded as
liabilities of a particular fund. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year
for which they are received.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the same basis of
accounting as used by the individual funds in the fund financial statements.

The government reports the following major governmental fund:
The General Fund is the Village’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all

financial resources of the general government, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

The Village reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water Fund and the Sewer Fund accounts for all activities related to the
billing, administration, distribution and collection processes of the water and
sewer utilities. The Village operates the water distribution system as well as the
sewage treatment plant, sewage pumping stations and collection systéms.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

@

The Electric Light and Power Fund accounts for all activities related to the
billing, administration and distribution processes of the Village’s electric and
power operations.

The Swimming Pool Fund accounts for all activities related to administration
and collection processes of the Village’s swimming pool operations.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are
reimbursements between funds for direct costs applicable to the other fund.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues

reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Village’s enterprise funds
are charges to customers for sales and services. The Village also recognizes as
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the system. Opetating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost
of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

Assets, Habilities and net assets or equity

Deposits and investments

The Village’s cash and eash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, certificates of deposits and short-term investments with original maturities
of three months or less. All deposits and investments are reported at fair value.

The Village is authorized by state statute to invest in obligations of the United States
of America, insured interest bearing accounts of banks, savings and loan associations
or credit unions, certain short-term obligations of corporations organized in the United
States, money market mutual funds that invest in obligations of the United States of
America or its agencies ot are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United
States of America, the Illinois Funds and repurchase agreements of government
securities. Investment income is recognized as earned.

Receivables and payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/boirowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds”
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.”
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Unbilled electric, water, and sewer utility receivables related to the business-type
activities are recorded at year-end. They are determined by taking cycle billings
subsequent to March 31 and prorating the applicable number of days to the current
fiscal year.

The Village records accounts receivable in the Statement of Net Position for amounts
that are due to the Village but have not been received at year-end. Accounts receivable
are largely comprised of billed and unbilled amounts for utilities in the business-type
activities. These balances are considered fully collectible at year-end.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. The government defines capital assets as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $500 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects when
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Type of Property Estimated

and Equipment Useful Lives

Buildings and Improvements 15-40 Years

Infrastructure 40 Years

Swimming Pool 20 Years
Distribution and Collection

Systems 15 - 50 Years

Vehicles and Equipment 5-10 Years
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Compensated absences

Sick leave is accrued for all employees at the rate of 1 day per month. On January 1%
of the year an employee celebrates their fifth year employment anniversary, and all
years thereafter, employees shall be granted twelve sick days. Sick leave can be carried
forward, but not to exceed 65 work days. All full-time employees of the Village who
have been employed for at least one (1) full year shall become eligible for vacation as
indicated by the following table:

Vacation
Service Allowed
Having Completed 1 Year 5 Working Days
2-8 Years Continuous 10 Working Days
9-17 Years Continuous 15 Working Days
18 or More Years Continuous 20 Working Days

1 day for each year over
18 years of service

An employee separated from the service of the Village shall be compensated for all
‘unused vacation leave accumulated prior to his/her e‘ffecti\_'c date of separation but not
for accumulated sick leave, Any liability at March 31, 2018 is immaterial.

Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and enterprise fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
statement of net position.

Fund balances
In the fund financial statements, the Village classifies the governmental fund balances
based upon the following criteria:

Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 1)
not in spendable form, or 2) legally or contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted — balances with constraints that are either externally imposed by
creditors or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Committed — balances that are to be only used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the Village Board, the highest level of
decision-making authority.

Assigned — balances that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used
for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned — the residual classification of the General Fund balance.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following details the description and amount of all constraints recorded by the
Village in the fund financial statements:

Governmental Funds

Restricted:
Tax Increment Financing District $ 466,466
Motor Fuel Tax Fund 285,909
Impact Fees Fund 28,708
Total Restricted $ 781,083

Committed:
Internal Service Fund § 95445

When expenditures are incurred for which the Village has both restricted and
unrestricted funds available, the Village spends any restricted funds before using
unrestricted sources. Likewise, the Village uses committed, assigned and then
unassigned balances, in that order, when spending amounts for which all three
categories are available.

(e¢) Budgetary Control

®

(e

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with the modified cash basis of accounting.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all governmental funds. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

On March 20, 2017 the Village Board approved an ordinance adopting the
appropriations which is the budgetary data reflected in these financial statements,
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the
year for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds.

Risk Management

‘The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefis of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the Village
carties commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in coverage
from the prior year and settlements have not exceeded coverages in the past three
years,

Estimates

The Village uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the reported revenues and expenditures. Actual results could vary from
estimates that were used.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

At March 31, 2018, the carrying amount of the Village's deposits was $5,160,467 and the
bank balance was $5,226,783. The deposits were comprised of checking, interest
checking, money market funds and certificates of deposit.

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the Vlliage s deposits may not be returned to it. As of March 31, 2018, all cash dep051t
balances in excess of FDIC insurance were collateralized with investments by the
financial institution.

Interest Rate Risk. The Village’s investment policy limits investment maturities in order
to maintain sufficient liquidity fo reflect the cash flow needs of the fund type being
invested. The Village only maintains investments in the Illinois Funds, which is an external
investment pool.

The Illinois Funds are pooled investments that are operated by the State of Hlinois as a
not-for-profit common' law trust and are not registered with the SEC. The funds are
monitored regularly through the State by internal and external audits. The goals of the
funds are to provide liquidity and to maintain balances that are equal to the par value of
the invested shares with no loss to market fluctuations. The fair value of the Village's
position in the pool is the saine as the value of the pool shares.

At March 31, 2018, the Village had the following investments:

Weighted Average
Investment Maturity (Days) Fair Value

The Illinois Funds (external investment pool) Daily $ 210,578
Petty Cash 615
Deposits as reported above 5,160,467
Total deposits and investments $ 5,371,660
As Reported in-the Statement of Net Position: _

‘Cash and Cash Equivalents: $ 3,029,727

Investments. 2,341,933

$ 5,371,660

Credit Risk. As of March 31, 2018, the credit rating of the Village’s investment was as

follows:
Standard & Moody's Investors
Investment Poor's Rating Service Rating
The.IHinois Funds (external investment pool) AAAM 5=

Concentration of Crcdi_t Risk. As of March 31, 2018, the Village did not have a
concentration of eredit risk.

Foreign Currency Risk. As of March 31, 2018, the Village has no foreign currency risk.
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NOTE 3: PROPERTY TAXES

‘The Village’s property tax is levied each year on all taxable real property located in the
Village on or before the second Tuesday in December. The Board passed the levy on
December 4, 2017. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January
1 and are payable in two installments. The County had not mailed tax bills as of March
31, 2018. Past mailing practices of the County have been subsequent to March 31 of each
year. The Village begins to receive significant distributions of tax receipts in June and
July after the bills are mailed by the County. The Village budgets and records property
tax revenue in the year the property taxes are received.

The following are the tax rates applicable to the various levies per $100 of assessed

valuation:
Maximum
Levy 2017 2016 2015
Tax Rates:
General $ 0.2500 $ 0.2097 § 0.2009 $ 0.1967
Bonds and Interést None 0.0607 0.0657 Q.0695
IMRF None 0.1981 0.1963 0.1849
Police Protection 0.0750 0.0699 0.0704 0.0729
Audit None 0.0100 0.0100 0.0104
Civil Defense (ESDA) 0.0500 0.0100 0.0042 0.0031
Total 3 0.5584 5 0.5475 $ 0.5375
Assessed Valuations $ 85,854,730  $ 84,623,062 $ 81,631,984
Tax Extensions:
‘General $ 180,037 $ 1 70_,-008 b 160,570
Bonds and Interest 52,114 55,597 56,734
IMRF ' 170,078 166,115 150,938
Police Protéction 60,012 59,575 59,510
Audit 8,586 8,462 8,490
Civil Defense (ESDA) 8,586 3,554 _ 2,530
Total 8 479,413 $ 463,311 b 438,772
Tax Collections $ - § 463,961 § 438346
Percent Collected 0.00% 100.14% 99.90%
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NOTE 4: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2018 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases  Decreases _ Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land ' $ 83,840 3§ - § - § 83,840
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 657,805 - - 657,805
Infrastructure 593,847 5,175 - 599,022
Vehicles and equipment’ 870,201 108,123 50,566 927,758
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,121,853 113,298 50,566 2,184,585
Less dccumulated depreciation for:
Building and improvements 356,448 23,829 - 380,277
Infrastructure 64,245 15,533 - 79,778
Vehicles and equipment 597.948 89,837 50,566 637.219
Total accumulated depreciation 1.018,641 _ 129,199 50,566 1097274
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 1,103,212 (15,901) - 1.087.311

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 1,187,052 $ (15,901) § § 1,171,151

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 426,700 $ - 3 - § 426,700
Capital agsets, being depreciated: _

Buildings-and improvements 7.365,738 44,439 - 7,410, 77

Swimming pool 1,099,984 - - 1,099,984

Distribution and collection system 15,090,199 251,139 6,625 15,334,713

Vehicles and equipment 2.474,523 214.775 33.512 2,655,786
Total capital assets; being depreciated 26.030.444 510.353 40.137 _ 26,500,660
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 4,739,974 212,070 - 4,952,044

Swimming pool 355,798 50,876 = 406,674

Distribution and collection system 8,559,866 608,569 6,625 9,16:1,8’10

Vehicles and equipment 1.603.403 201 ',7;54 33,5_} 12 1 ;7?1.645
Total accunulated depreciation 15,259,041 1,073.269 40,137 16,292,173
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 10771403 _{562.916) - _10.208.487
Business-type activities capital assets, net $11,198,103 $(562,916) % - $10,635,187
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Depreeiation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 31,169
Public safety 52,376
Highways and streets 35,574
Sanitation 10,080
Total depreciation expense - goverimental activities $ 129,199

Business-type activities:

Electric light and power $ 653,418
Water 224,722
Sewer 122,117
Swimming pool 73.012

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 1,073,269

NOTE 5: RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS

(a) Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Plan Description. The Village’s defined benefit pension plan for regular employees
provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Plan is affiliated with the Illinois
Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit
provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General
Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The report
may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, members are required to contribute 4.50 percent of
their annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount.
necessary, in addition to member conttibutions, to finance the retirement coverage of
its own employees. The employer annual required contribution rate for calendar year
2017 was 10.27 percent. The employer also contributes for disability benefits, death
benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF
level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board
of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Covered Employees. The following types of employees comprise the membership of

the plan.
Retirees and Beneficiaries 23
Inactive, non-Retired Members 10
Active Members 28
Total 61
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Discount Rate. GASB Statement No. 68 includes a specific requirement for the
discount rate that is used for the purpose of the measurement of the Total Pension
Liability. This rate considers the ability of the fund to meet benefit obligations in the
future. To make this determination, employer contributions, employee contributions,

benefit payments, expenses and investment returns are projected into the future. The
Plan Net Position (assets) in future years can then be determined and compared to its
obligation to make benefit payments in those years. As long as assets are projected to
be on hand in a future year, the assumed valuation discount rate is used. In years where
assets are not projected to be sufficient to meet benefit payments, the use of a “risk-

free” rate is required, as described in the following paragr aph.

The Single Discount Rate (SDR) is equivalent to applying these two rates to the
benefits that are projected to be paid during the different time periods. The SDR
reflects (1) the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (during
the period in which the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay
benefits) and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general
obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal
Reserve) as of the measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with
the long-term expected rate of return are not met).

For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan
investments is 7.50%; the municipal bond rate is 3.31%; and the resulting single
discount rate is 7.50%.

Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31/17
Measurement Date of the Net Pension Liability 12/31117
Fiscal Year End 03/31/18
Development of the Single Discount Rate as of December 31, 2017
Long-Term Expected Rate of Investment Return 7.50%
Long-Term Municipal Bond Rate 3.31%
Last year ending December 31 in the 2018 to:2117 projection period
for which projected benefit payments are fully funded 2117
Resulting Single Discount Rate based on the above development 7.50%
Single Discount Rate calculated using December 31, 2016 Measurement Date 7.50%

The Long-Term Municipal Bond Rate is based on the Fidelity Index's "20 Year Municipal
GO AA Index" as of December 29, 2017.
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Actuarial Assumptions. The following are the actuarial assumptions used in the
calculation of the net pension liability.

Actuarial Cost Method Aggregate Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaiing Amortization Non-Taxing bodies: 10 year rolling period
Period Taxing bodies: 26 year closed period.

Early Retirement Incentive Plan liabilities: a period up to 10 years
selected by the Employer upon adoption of ERIL
Asset Valuation Method ~ 5-Year smoothed market; 20% corridor

Wage growth 3.50%

Price Inflation 2.75% - approximate; No explicit price inflation assumption is used in this
valuation.

Salary Increases 3.75% to 14.5% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return  7.50%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility

condition. Last updated for the 2014 valuation pursuant to an experience
study of the period 2011-2013.

Mortality For non-disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was vsed with
fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base yéar 2012), The IMRF
specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Blie Collar Health
Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to maich current IMRF
experience. For disabled retirées, an IMRF specific mortality table was
used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012).
The IMRF specivic rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled
Retirees Mortality Table applying the same adjustment that were applied
for non-disabled lives. For active members, an IMRF specific mortality
table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base
year 2012}, The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014
Employee Mortality Table with adjustments to matéh cwrent IMRF
experience,
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Net Pension Liability. The following is a summary of the Net Pension Liability as shown
as a liability in the financial statements.

Total pension Liability

Service Cost $ 179,569
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 525,190
Changes of benefit terms -
Difference between expected and actual experience
of the Total Pension Liabifity (251,274)
Changes of assumptions (221,760)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (340,069)
Net change in total pension liability $ (108,344)
Total pension liability - beginning 7,082,787
“Total pension liability - ending $ 6,974,443
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 174,004
Contributiorss - employee 76,243
Net investment income 1,093,030
Benefit payments, including refinds
of employee contributions (340,069)
Other (Net Transfer) (349,403)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position $ 653,805
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 6,148,360
Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 6,802,165
Net pension lability/(asset) $ 172,278
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability 97.53%
Covered valuation payroll $ 1,694,296
Net pension liability as a percentage 10.17%

of covered valuation payroll

35



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS |
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

To report the sensitivity of the net pension liability to the selected discount rate, the
following table displays the variation given a 1% increase or decrease.

Current Single
Discount Rate
1% Decrease  Assumption 1% Increase

6.50% 7.50% 8.50%
Total Pension Liability $ 7,833,790 8§ 6974443 $ 6,262,536
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 6,802,165 6,802,165 6,802,165

Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 1,031,625 $ 172278 % (539,629)

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflowis of Resources by Source to be recognized in
Future Pension Expenses. The following tables display the amount of deferred inflows

and outflows related to the net pension liability and the future periods that these deferrals
will affect the financial statements.

Deferred

Qutflows of

Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ ( 89,-31 N
Changes in assumptions (183,046)
Subsequent coritributions to plan 37,050

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investiments {333,014)
Total $ (668,321)
Net Deferred

Year Ending Outflows of

December 31, Resources
2018 $ (83,650)
2019 (120,700)
2020 (216,019)
2021 (221,158)
2022 {26.794)

$ (668321)

(b) Social Security

All employees, including those qualifying for coverage under the Ilinois Municipal
Retirement Fund, are covered under Social Security. The Village paid $123,816, the
required contribution for the current fiscal year.
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT

The Village has the following long-term debt as of March 31, 2018.

Bonds Payable

$550,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011 dated July 20, 2011, due in annual
installments of $35,000 to $50,000 through December 1, 2026; interest at 3.75% to 5.25%.
‘The amount of bonds outstanding as of March 31, 2018 is $380,000. These bonds are
being retired by the Swimming Pool Fund.

$4,780,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 dated September 13, 2012,
due in annual installments of $330,000 to $395,000 through December 1, 2025; interest
at 1.65% to 2.85%. The amount of bonds outstanding as of March 31, 2018 is $2,885,000.
These bonds are being retired by the Electric Light and Power Fund. This issue refunded
Series 2005 Bonds.

$1,950,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 dated April 29, 2014, due
in semi-annual installments of $155,000 to $185,000 through November 1, 2025; interest
at 1.55% 10 3.30%. The amount of bonds outstanding as of March 31, 2018 is $1,330,000.
These bonds are being retired by the TIF Fund. This issue refunded Series 2005 Tax
Increment Revenue Bonds.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds are as follows:

Year Ended Governmental Business-type
March 31 Activities Activities
Principal Interest Principal ~ Interest

2019 § 155000 $ 34,622 § 365,000 § 86,357
2020 155,000 32,220 375,000 80,099
2021 160,000 29,352 390,000 71,900
2022 160,000 25,833 395,000 62,500
2023 165,000 21,752 405,000 52,179

2024-2027 535,000 35,020 1,335,000 89,_ 369

$ 1,330,000 $ 178,799  § 3,265,000 § 442,904

IEPA Loans

$104,816 loan with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency to be repaid with
semiannual payments of $3,568 through March 2019, including interest at 2.865%. The
loan was used to assist the Water Fund in the construction of a waterline extension. The
balance outstanding on March 31, 2018 is $6,986.

$479,822 loan with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency to be repaid with semi-
annual installments of $15,765, including interest at 2.535%. The loan was used to assist
in the construction of sanitary sewer lines and an excess flow clarifier at the West Sewage
Treatment Plant. The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2018 is $90,437.
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$583,674 loan with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency to be repaid with semi-
annual installments of $18,648, including interest at 2.925%. The loan was used to assist
in the construction of sewer lines on North State Street. The balance outstanding as of
March 31, 2018 is $471,049.

$1,085,569 loan with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency to be repaid with
semi-annual installments of $33,757, including interest at 1,86%. The loan was used to
assist in the construction of the Notth Trunk Extension/Deerfield Relief Sewer Project,
The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2018 is $1,052,697.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for EPA Loans are as follows:

Year Ended
March 31 EPA Loans
Principal ~ Interest

2019 $ 87,010 $§ 22,707
2020 106,028 30,312
2021 108,242 28,005
2022 78,964 25,847
2023 80,566 24,247

2024-2028 428,008 96,046

2029-2033 473,254 50,799

2034-2037 259,097 10,961

$ 1,621,169 § 288,924

Notes Pavable

$225,618 loan with Citizens Community Bank to be repaid with annual payments of
$36,464 through July 2020, including interest at 3.182%. The loan was used to purchase
a Bucket/Pole Truck for the Electric Light and Power Fund. The balance outstanding as
of March 31, 2018 is $102,817.

$67,000 loan with Midland States Bank to be repaid with annual payments of $17,934
through October 2020, including interest at 2.75%. The loan was used to purchase a Leaf
Vacuum for the General Fund. The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2018 is $50,934.

$76,741 loan with Citizens Community Bank to be repaid in two annual payments of
$39,955, including interest at 2,74%. The loan was used to purchase three vehicles to be
used in the water, sewer, and street departments. The balance outstanding as of March 31,
2018 is $76,741.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:

Year Ended Governmental Business-type
March 31 Activities Activities
Principal Interest Principal Interest
2019 $ 25970 § 1,953 $§ 61496 $ 4,935
2020 26,703 1,230 63,389 3,075
2021 17,446 488 35,488 1,162

$ 70,119 $ 3671 § 160373 $ 9,172

Capital Leases

$27,600 capital lease with John Deere to be paid in three annual payments of $10,065,
including interest at 4.50%. The loan was used to purchase three vehicles to be used in the
water, sewer, and Street departments. The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2018 is
$27,600.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for capital leases are as follows:

Year Ended Governmental Business-type
March 31 Activities Activities

Principal  Interest Principal  Interest
2019 $ 3518 § 508 § 5278 § 761
2020 3,680 346 5,520 519
2021 3,702 177 5,902 265
$ 10900 § 1,031 §$ 16700 $§ 1,545

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended March 31,

2018.
Amounts
Beginning Ending. Due Within
Balance Additions  Reductions Balance Oné Year
Business-type Activities:
Bonds Payable § 3,630,000 3% - § 365000 $ 3265000 $ 365,000
Capital Leases - 16,700 . 16,700 5,278
Notes Payable 162,977 57,556 60,160 160,373 61,496

EPA Loans 1,208,883 506,673 04,387 1,621,169 87,010
Net Pension Liablity 461,338 - 372,342 88,996 -

§ 5463198 § 580,929 § 891,889 §$ 5,152238 § 518,784

Govertimental Activities:

Borids Payable $ 1,480,000 3 - $ 150,000 § 1,330,000 $ 155,000
Capital Leases 5 13,800 2,900 10,900 3,518
Notes Pavable 67.000 19,183 16.066 70.119 25,970

$ 1,547,000 § 32985 § 168966 § 1,411,019 $ 184,488
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NOTE 7: LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

The computation of legal debt margin at March 31, 2018 is as follows:

Bonded Debt Limit* $ 7,404,970
Bonded Indebtédness 1,411,019
Legal Debt Margin $ 5,993,951

*  The bonded indebtedness of the Village is limited by Chapter 65, Section 5/8-5-1 of
the Ilinois Compiled Statutes to 8.625% of the assessed valuation of taxable
tangible property.

NOTE 8: INTERFUND TRANSFERS

The General Fund transferred $74,031 to the Swimming Pool Fund in the year ended
March 31, 2018.

NOTE 9: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Village has evaluated events occurring after the financial statement date
through September 17, 2018 in order to determine their potential for recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements. The latter date is the same date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MODIFIED CASH BASIS
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Actual
Budgeted Amounts (Budget
Original Final Basis)
Revenues:
Property Tax $ 501,101 $ 501,101 $ 510,892
Replacement Tax 5,500 5,500 5,463
Sales Tax 390,000 390,000 413,303
State Income Tax 425,000 425,000 424,228
Local Use Tax 80,000 80,000 112,623
Telecommunications Tax 115,000 115,000 92,640
Video Gaming Tax 17,500 17,500 40,298
Franchise Tax 24,000 24,000 25,030
Utility Tax 245,000 245,000 254,645
Licenses and Permits 38,645 38,645 44,336
Fines and Penalties 19,500 19,500 12,120
Garbage Collection 246,800 246,800 254,218
Rental/Lease Income 5,200 5,200 =
Investment Earnings 3,000 3,000 6,331
Grants 28,000 28,000 .
Miscellaneous 68,160 68,160 84,288
Total Revenues 2,212,406 2,212,406 2,280,415
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government 256,754 256,754 217,888
Public Safety:
Police 1,187,835 1,187,835 1,115,990
Civil Defense 5,050 5,050 5,500
Highways and Streets 428,593 428,593 392,837
Sanitation 228,500 228,500 226,810
Capital Outlay 119,700 119,700 80,313
Transfers 15,000 15,000 15,000
Total Expenditures 2,241,432 2,241,432 2,075,172
Net Change in Fund Balances §  (29,026) $  (29,026) 205,243
Change for modified cash basis reporting
Cash Transfer Between Funds (59,031

As reported on the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
Arising From Modified Cash Basis Transactions $ 146,212



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILTY AND RELATED RATIOS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

MARCH 31,2018
2017 2016 2015

Total Pension Liability:

Service Cost $ 179,569 $ 177858 § 166,984

Interest 525,190 501,542 466,844

Difference between expected and actual experience (251,274) (44,602) 96,660

Assumption changes (221,760) (16,734) 16,488

Benefit payments, including refunds (340,069) (302,922) (240,8:54)
Net change in total pension liability (108,3 44) 315,142 506,122
Total pension liability - beginning 7,082,787 6,767,645 6,261,523
Total pension liability - ending $ 6,974,443 $ 7,082,787 $ 6,767,645
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employer 174,004 177,706 186,321

Contributions - employee 76,243 76,818 77,063

Net investment income 1,093,030 390,015 28,944

Benefit payments, including refunds (340,069) (302,922) (240,854)

Other (349,403) 60,649 (83,002)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 653,805 402,266 (31,528)
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 6,148,360 5,746,094 5,777,622
Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 6,802,165 $ 6,148,360 $ 5,746,094
Net Pension Liability $ 172278 $ 934427 $ 1,021,551
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability 97.53% 86.81% 84.91%
Covered-employee Payroll $ 1,694,296 § 1,707,064 $ 1,712,505

Net position liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 10.17% 34.74% 59.65%



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

MARCH 31, 2018
2017 2016 015

Actuarial Determined Contribution $ 174,004 $ 177,705 $ 186,321
Contributions in relation to N

actuarial determined contribution 174,004 177,706 186,321
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - 8 (H 3 -
Covered-employee Payroll 1,694,296 1,707,064 1,712,505
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll V (0279 10.41% 10.88%

Actuarial valuation date for above is December 31, 2017.

The actuarial valuations presented are prepared using the following parameters:

Actuarial Cost Method: Aggregate Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method: Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization Period: 26 years

Asset Valuation Method: 5-Year smoothed market; 20% corridor

Actuarial Assumptions:
Interest Rate (current and prior) 7.50%
Wage Growth 3.50%
Price Inflation 2.75%



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Total Assets

Liabiiiti_es and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
None
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Restricted

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance

MARCH 31,2018
Motor
Impact Fuel
Fees Tax TIF _Total
$ 7,716 160,584 466,466 634,766
20,992 125,325 - 146,317
$ 28,708 285,909 466,466 781,083
S. . 2 & -
28,708 285,909 466,466 781,083
28,708 285,909 466,466 781,083
$ 28,708 285,909 466,466 781,083




VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAIJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Motor
Impact Fuel
Fees Tax TIF Total
Revenues:
Property Tax $ - 3 - $ 230,388 $ 230,388
Motor Fuel Tax - 110,259 - 110,259
Investment Income 330 4,338 874 5,542
Total Revenues _ 330 114,597 231,262 346,189
Expenditures:
Current:
Highways and Streets - 91,963 - 91,963
Development - - 11,361 11,361
Debt Service: .
Principal - - 150,000 150,000
Interest and Fees 5 : 36,825 36,825
Total Expenditures - 91,963 198,186 290,149
Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures 330 22,634 33,076 56,040
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 28,378 263,275 ¢ 433,390 725,043

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 28,708 $ 285,900 $ 466,466 $ 781,083




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
COMPLIANCE WITH TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT

To the Honorable Mayor and Board
of Trustees of the Village of
Freeburg, Illinois

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1; this includes
determining that the modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of
the financial statements in the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal confrol relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
error-or fraud.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

......

dlsclosur_es in the ,ﬁnanc_lal statements. The procedm es selected dcpend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit pmcedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
cash balances of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois’ Tax Increment Financing District, as referred to
in the first paragraph, as of March 31, 2018 and the revenues it received and expenditures it paid
for the year then ended on the basis of accounting described in Note 1.

Other Matters

The management of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois is responsible for the government's
compliance with laws and regulations. In connection with our audit, referred to above, we selected
and tested transactions and records to determine the government's compliance with 65 ILCS 5/11-
74.4-3, "Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act",

The results of our tests indicate that for the items tested, the Village of Freeburg, Illinois, complied
with Subsection (q) of 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3, "Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act".
Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that, for the items not tested, the Village of
Freeburg, Illinois was not in compliance with Subsection (q) of 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3, "Tax
Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act”.

Certified Public Accountants
Alton, Illinois

September 17, 2018



